MURANG'A COUNTY GOVERNMENT



0 5 DFC 2022

MURANG'A COUNTY ASSEMBLY

THIRD ASSEMBLY- FIRST SESSION

THE FINANCE & ECONOMIC PLANNING COMMITTEE'S REPORT ON

IT'S CONSIDERATION OF THE REVISED COUNTY ANNUAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR FY 2027/23

Clerk's Chambers,
Murang'a County Assembly Buildings,
MURANG'A

CA HBRC
LI87 in the DP
S/a/202-2

Table of Contents

PREFACE2
COMMITTEE MANDATE
COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP3
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT4
1.0 BACKGROUND
2.0 THE LEGAL FRAMEWORK FOR THE REVISED ADP 6 2.1 Adherence to the provisions of the Constitution 6 2.2 Adherence to the County Government Act 2012 7 2.3 Adherence to the Requirement on Public Participation 8
3.0 SUBMISSIONS FROM THE SECTORAL COMMITTEES
3.2 Agriculture, Livestock and Fisheries Sector
3.4 Governorship and Public Service Sector
3.7 Trade, Industrialization, Cooperatives, Tourism and Wildlife Sector
3.8 Sports, Youth, Culture, Gender and Social Services Sector
4.0MEETING WITH THE CECM — ECONOMIC PLANNING ON THE REVISED ADP
5.0 RESOURCE REQUIREMENT FOR THE IMPLEMENTATION OF ADP FY 2022/2316
5.0 INTEGRATED PLANNING
7.0 RECOMMENDATIONS ON THE REVISED ADP FOR FY 2022/23
ADOPTIONError! Bookmark not defined.

PREFACE

Hon. Speaker, Section108 (1), PFM Act provides that "A county government may, with the approval of its county assembly, deviate from the financial objectives in the relevant County Fiscal Strategy Paper, but only on a temporary basis and only if the deviation is required because of a major natural disaster or some other significant unforeseen event."

Further, Subsection (2) contemplates that "if there is a change of county government; the new county government may deviate from the financial objectives in a County Fiscal Strategy Paper, but may not deviate from the fiscal responsibility objectives. Section 108 (3), PFM Act avers that "The County Treasury shall also provide a report to the county assembly regarding the deviation and its implication and shall include in the report

- a) information on the reasons and implication for the deviation;
- b) proposals to address the deviation; (c) the time the deviation is estimated to last; and
- c) The status of development projects initiated by the county government and if any projects have been stopped, the reasons for doing so.

Hon. Speaker, It is against this backdrop that the CECM – Finance and Economic Planning submitted the revised Murang'a County Annual Development Plan for FY 2022/23 on November 15, 2022. Consequently, on November 22, 2022 the Chairperson, Finance and Economic Planning Committee laid on the table, the revised Annual Development Plan for the FY 2022/23. Having been laid on the table, the revised ADP was deemed to have been committed to the Sectoral committees for review in line with their mandates and report to this Committee.

COMMITTEE MANDATE

Hon. Speaker, Committee on Finance and Economic Planning is established pursuant to the provisions of SO No. 204, with mandate to;

- a) investigate, inquire into, and report on all matters relating to the mandate, management, activities, administration, operations and estimates of the assigned departments;
- b) study the programme and policy objectives of departments and the effectiveness of the implementation;
- c) study and review all county legislation referred to it;
- d) study, assess and analyse the relative success of the departments as measured by the results obtained as compared with their stated objectives;
- e) investigate and inquire into all matters relating to the assigned departments as they may deem necessary, and as may be referred to them by the Assembly;
- f) to vet and report on all appointments where the Constitution or any law requires the Assembly to approve, except those under Standing Order 198 (Committee on Appointments); and
- g) Make reports and recommendations to the Assembly as often as possible, including recommendation of proposed legislation.

Additionally, under the second schedule of the standing orders, Finance and Economic Planning Committee is mandated to look into all matters related to management of public finance and economic planning, county planning and statistics and disaster management.

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP

Mr. Speaker Sir, the Committee on Finance and Economic Planning is comprised of the following Members-:

1. Hon. John Ngugi Kibaiya

Chairperson

2. Hon. Alex Wanyoike

Vice Chairperson

3. Hon. Francis K. Kamau

Member

4. Hon. Stephen Muigai

Member

	5.	Hon. Morris Thuku	Member
	6.	Hon. John Kamau Munyua	Member
	7.	Hon. Loise Mary Muthoni	Member
	8.	Hon. Margret W. Gichia	Member
	9.	Hon. Peter Murigi Ngugi	Member
	10.	Hon. Jane Mukami	Member
	11.	Hon. Thomas Muteti	Member
	12.	Hon. Gladys Wambui Waikau	Member
	13.	Hon. Charles M. Karina	Member
	14.	Hon. Hilary Muigai Muchoki	Member
	15.	Hon. Pauline Njeri Muchiri	Member
0	16.	Hon. Esther Nyawira Kamindo	Member

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Hon. Speaker, I wish to acknowledge the,

- 1. Members of Joint Committee on Budget and Finance for their participation during the process.
- 2. The officers from the County Executive led by the Ag. County Secretary, CECM Finance, CECMs and Economic Planning unit for their contribution towards the development of this Plan. Special mention goes to the CECM Finance and Economic Planning for his leadership and support in the revision of the Plan.
- 3. The sectoral committees in for giving their recommendations on sector priorities.
- 4. Offices of the Speaker and the Clerk for facilitating the joint committee to meet the planning and budgeting obligations of the County Assembly.

Mr. Speaker Sir, it's my pleasant duty and honour, on behalf of the Committee on Finance and Economic Planning to table this report and recommend it to Assembly for adoption.

SIGNEDDATEDATE

Hon. John Ngugi Kibaiya, MCA

Chairperson, Finance and Economic Planning Committee

1.0 BACKGROUND

Hon. Speaker, the provisions relating to amending county integrated development plans are domiciled under section 112, CGA, 2012;

- (1) Provides that a county executive committee may by a resolution; introduce a proposal to amend the county's integrated development plan.
- (2) A proposed amendment under subsection (1) to a county's integrated development plan shall be considered and approved or rejected by the county assembly in accordance with its standing orders.
- (3) A proposal for amending a county's integrated development plan shall be—
 - (a) Accompanied by a memorandum setting out the reasons for the proposal; and
 - (b) Aligned with the framework adopted in terms of section 106.

1.2 Basis for revising the ADP

Hon. Speaker, in a memorandum addressed to the County Assembly vide a letter referenced MCG/EP/1/7/A VOL II (41), the CECM— Finance indicated that the revised ADP had been prepared in accordance with sec. 106 and 112 of the County Governments Act 2012 and section 108 (1) and (2) of the Public Finance Management Act 2012, which allow for amendments with a view to accommodating priorities of a new county government and priorities emerging from public consultations.

As a result, the revised ADP accommodates the new Governor's manifesto, which has a strong focus on agricultural production and social welfare. To cater for this, priority has been given to the following programmes:

- a) Bursaries, which now extends to students in day schools
- b) Agricultural subsidies
- c) Social health insurance cover
- d) ECDE feeding programme
- e) Community based projects for equitable ward development
- f) Urban development

2.0 THE LEGAL FRAMEWORK FOR THE REVISED ADP

GEORGE.

2.1 Adherence to the provisions of the Constitution

Hon. Speaker, Article 220 (2) of the Constitution provides for the national legislation providing for;

- a) the structure of the development plans and budgets of counties;
- b) when the plans and budgets of the counties shall be tabled in the county assemblies; and
- c) the form and manner of consultation between the national government and county governments in the process of preparing plans and budgets.

From the above constitutional imperative, Section 126 of the PFM Act, 2012 provides that every county government shall prepare a development plan in accordance with Article 220(2) of the Constitution of Kenya for approval by the County Assembly, that includes;

- a) Strategic priorities for the medium term that reflect the county government's priorities and plans;
- A description of how the county government is responding to changes in the financial and economic environment;
- c) Programmes to be delivered with details for each programme of;
 - i. The strategic priorities to which the programme will contribute;
 - ii. The services or goods to be provided;
 - iii. Measurable indicators of performance where feasible; and
 - iv. The budget allocated to the programme;
- Payments to be made on behalf of the county government, including details of any grants, benefits and subsidies that are to be paid;
- e) A description of significant capital developments;
- f) A detailed description of proposals with respect to the development of physical, intellectual, human and other resources of the county, including measurable indicators where those are feasible;
- g) A summary budget in the format required by regulations; and (h) such other matters as may be required by the Constitution or this Act.

2.2 Adherence to the County Governments Act, 2012

- Section 104, CGA, 2012 obligates the county government to have a development plan in place in that 'A county government shall plan for the county and no public funds shall be appropriated outside a planning framework developed by the county executive committee and approved by the county assembly." It is on this basis the county receives funds from the exchequer.
- Section 106 (1), CGA ,2012 states that planning should integrate the national and county planning in that it contemplates Cooperation in planning shall be undertaken in the context of the law governing inter-governmental relations.
- Section 107 (2), CGA, 2012 avers that the county plans shall be the basis for all budgeting and spending in a county.
- Section 112, CGA, 2012 prescribes the steps to be followed in amending the CIDP. Sub section (1) requires that "A county executive committee may by a resolution, introduce a proposal to amend the county's integrated development plan. (2) A proposed amendment under subsection (1) to a county's integrated development plan shall be considered and approved or rejected by the county assembly in accordance with its standing orders."
- The amendment to the current CIDP is prescribed under S0. 228 (1) which states that a proposed amendment to the County Integrated Development Plan, including a proposed amendment by a resident of Murang'a County may be submitted by way of a memorandum addressed to the Assembly.
- The consideration in the Assembly of a proposal to amend the County Integrated Development Plan shall, in addition to complying with the requirements set out under section 112 of the County Governments Act, follow the procedure for considering the County Integrated Development Plan under Standing Order 227.
- Standing Order 227 prescribes the procedure for the approval of CIDP which also applies to the amendment to the CIDP. The County Executive Committee Member responsible for Planning shall at least once in every five years, prepare and submit to the Assembly, the draft County Integrated Development Plan.

 Further, is the requirement for the sectoral committees to look into their sectors and report back to the committee within 21 days. The Finance and Economic Planning Committee in making recommendations shall consider views of the sectoral committees, the views of the Executive Committee Member in charge of Planning and the public.

2.3 Adherence to the Requirement on Public Participation

- The priorities that are highlighted in the revised ADP should be subjected to public consultation. The ADP should give details of priorities that were collected from the public and how that input was adopted into the ADP. Justification should also be provided in all cases where public input was used and where it was not.
- Section 105 (1) (d), CGA, 2012 provides that the county planning unit shall ensure meaningful engagement of citizens in the planning process.
- In the letter referenced MCG/EP/1/7/A VOL II (41) to the County Assembly, CECM —
 Finance indicated that the revised ADP was informed by the need to accommodate
 priorities of a new county government and priorities emerging from public
 consultations.
- That no amendment to a county's integrated development plan may be considered by the county assembly unless the proposed amendment has been published for public comment for a period of at least twenty one days in a manner that allows the public an opportunity to make representations with regard to the proposed amendment in accordance with section 112 (6) (b) of the County Government Act.
- During the joint meeting with the Budget and Finance Committee on November 28,
 2022, CECM Finance and Economic Planning relayed to members that the County
 Executive conducted public participation on the revised Annual Development Plan
 and the new policies on 21st October 2022.
- Hon. Speaker, the adequacy of planning and budget sectors as public participation
 mechanisms should be reviewed to ensure adequate public participation as
 opposed to elite sector participation. Inclusion of more non-state actors in the
 budget Sector Working Groups should be considered.
- For effective public participation to be mainstreamed, institutionalised, developed and sustained there is need to invest both time and resources to this important

facet of governance and development. Dedicated offices/officers to facilitate public participation should therefore be established or designated at the county level.

 The offices should develop the infrastructure for public participation, including information centres, public communication frameworks, modalities and platforms for participation, petition procedures, referenda guidelines and public complaints systems.

3.0 SUBMISSIONS FROM THE SECTORAL COMMITTEES

3.1 Health Services Sector

Justification on the new projects Under Health

a) Construction of Mathioya Level 4 Hospital

There is a plan to upgrade the facility to avoid referrals to Kangema and Murang'a health facilities.

b) Construction of Kenol Level 4 Hospital

- ✓ The facility construction was being planned on the newly acquired Del Monte land parcel
- ✓ Construction of kenol level IV hospital complements our county referral hospital with an ICU and Dialysis wings.

c) Construction of Kandara Level 4 Hospital

✓ There was need to upgrade the facility's infrastructure as the current infrastructure did not justify its level 4 status.

d) Refurbishment of Maragua Level 4 Hospital

- ✓ The facility had not been refurbished for the last 10 years
- ✓ The existing wards were being shared by men and women thus need for separate Wards
- ✓ There was a proposed twin ward project which was not captured in the supplementary budget estimated at Kshs.16 Million.

Sector recommendations

 That Kenol Level 5 hospital is named as per its appropriate title which was Kenneth Matiba Hospital.

- 2. That the bill of quantities and drawings be provided to the committee for the proposed constructions in Kenol, Maragua, Mathioya and Kandara hospitals.
- That Kshs.120 Million allocated for construction of Kenol Level 4 hospital was inadequate. The amount was instead be re-allocated as follows;
 - a) Kshs 80 Million to be allocated for building the foundation and initial structure of the hospital.
 - b) Kshs 20 Million-to be re-allocated to refurbishment of Maragua Level 4 Hospital.
 - Kshs 20 million-to be re-allocated to construction of Mathioya Level 4
 Hospital.

3.2 Agriculture, Livestock and Fisheries Sector

Justification for inclusion of new projects

- a) Mango Subsidy and Milk value chain subsidy have been proposed to promote investment and financial empowerment to farmers.
- b) On the demand for policy framework, the CECM, Agriculture promised to submit the policy document by Tuesday November 29, 2022.
- c) In terms of operationalizing the subsidy programme, the CEC said that Public Finance Management (Murang'a County Agricultural Farm Inputs Subsidy Fund) regulations, 2022 had been forwarded to the County Assembly for processing.

Sector recommendations

- a) Given that the department was willing to engage the committee further on the policy framework the committee recommends that the new programmes be approved as proposed.
- b) That the County Department of Agriculture shall only implement the programmes after the committee discusses and approves the policy on mango and milk subsidy.

3.3 Public Works, Roads and Transport Sector

Justifications for inclusion of new projects

- In accordance with section 39 (6) (c) of the PFM regulations, the CEC justified reduction of Kshs. 250 million for gravelling and maintenance and its re-allocation to the new program on Community Based Projects with the following objectives

B"	Sub-Program	Objectives
1.	ECDE Classroom renovation and	To provide quality learning facilities and a
	construction	better learning environment.
2.	Roads Development	To build resilient roads within the County
3. Market Sheds To provide better tra-		To provide better trading environment
4.	Dispensary Renovation and	To grow a healthy community
	construction	
5.	Pipe distribution	To provide access to water
6.	Other infrastructure (Culverts	To improve access and drainage of storm water
	and Footbridges)	
7.	Urban Development	To provide mobility within the urban centers
8.	Energy distribution	To increase connectivity and to provide
	4.7.782	sustainable energy

 The allocation of Ksh. 280 million for community-based projects has been equitably distributed across all the 35 Wards and is itemized. The work plan for implementation of the ward projects was provided.

Sector recommendations

- a) That the CEC should lobby for additional funds for street lighting maintenance and new installations since most of the street lights and flood lights in major urban centres like Kenol are no longer functioning hence affecting trade and mobility.
- b) That the CEC should engage members of the County Assembly on Quarterly basis on the ward-based projects in the different Wards in a manner that facilitate effective oversight of the works being undertaken.
- c) That the community-based projects especially the ECDE facilities projects should be undertaken immediately during the long holiday between December and January, to avoid disruption of learning when schools reopen.

d) That the committee approves the sector ADP as proposed.

3.4 Governorship and Public Service Sector

Justifications for inclusion of new projects

- Construction of the residences of the Governor and Deputy Governor were abolished in the current financial year in line with priorities for the sector under the new administration manifesto.
- Purchase of monitoring and evaluation vehicle
 It's expected that the vehicle will facilitate the project monitoring and evaluation
 team in tracking the implementation of policies, programmes
 and projects in the county departments, decentralised units
 and across the county.
- 3. Internship programme

A brain child of the current Governor aims at offering the opportunity for vocational and college graduates to acquire and develop valuable technical and professional skills while gaining work experience and to certify the requirement for registration by various professional bodies.

Sector recommendation

- 1. That an allocation of Kshs. 10 million be made under the Office of Deputy Governor by:
 - a) Reducing Kshs. 5 million from legal fees under county coordination;
 - b) Reducing Kshs. 2 million from vehicle purchase under County Executive; and
 - c) Reducing Kshs. 3 million from security operations under the County Coordination.

3.5 Environment, Energy, Forestry and Natural Resources sector

That the sector ADP be approved as proposed.

3.6 Water and Irrigation Sector

Sector recommendations

- 1. That the revised Annual Development Plan 2022/ 2023 had introduced the Community based projects, which should prioritize projects within the 35 wards, including roads, health, ECDE and especially for the Water and irrigation sub sector.
- 2. That the sector ADP be approved as proposed.

3.7 Trade, Industrialization, Cooperatives, Tourism and Wildlife Sector.

Justification

1. The MCDA set up and operationalisation of Murang'a Eco Industrial Special Economic Zone is geared up to complement the launched "Hustler Fund' in that any trader who does not qualify for the Hustler Fund can be allocated a maximum of Ksh. 5,000 seed capital.

Sector recommendation

That the sector ADP be approved as proposed.

3.7 Education, Technical Training & ICT sector Sector recommendations

- a) Policy documents/regulations should be provided for all the programmes in both in Education and vocational training especially touching on the Uji program and other programs the County is touching on.
- b) There should be plans for inclusion of special needs classes across the county. This touches on inclusive education. The department should engage more on the devolved functions and before supporting programmes on functions that are not devolved.
- c) More funds to be allocated to employment of more ECDE teachers. Those who are currently employed on contract basis be employed on permanent and pensionable (P and P) terms. Having at least 2 ECDE teachers in a class as per the government regulations.

d) More funds to be allocated to the vocational training department to cater for infrastructure development.

ICT Subsector

- a) Policy documents/regulations should be provided for all the programmes in ICT and technological development.
- b) Allocation of more funds to the ICT department for development to cater for ICT scale up.

3.8 Sports, Youth, Culture, Gender and Social Services Sector

That the sector ADP be approved as proposed.

3.9 Land, Housing and Urban Development Sector Sector recommendations

- a) That the sector ADP be approved as proposed.
- b) That it was urgent to consider the staffing needs of the sector to facilitate land sector reforms, land succession programme, protection of public land and economic empowerment of the people.

3.10 Finance and Economic Planning Sector

- a) The CECM- Finance implored on the need to automate the revenue collection seeing that the office of the controller of budget has often chided the county treasury for the underperformance in own source revenue.
- b) That the sector ADP be approved as proposed.

4.0 MEETING WITH THE CECM - ECONOMIC PLANNING ON THE REVISED ADP

During the inaugural meeting on November 21st 2022, the joint committee on Budget and Finance resolved to meet the CECM - Economic Planning on the consideration of the revised ADP and supplementary budget estimates.

The committee was guided by section 108, PFM Act, which provides that County Treasury shall also provide a report to the county assembly regarding the deviation and its implication and shall include in the report —

- a) information on the reasons and implication for the deviation;
- b) proposals to address the deviation;
- c) the time the deviation is estimated to last; and (d) the status of development projects initiated by the county government and if any projects have been stopped, the reasons for doing

In a letter dated 23rd November, 2022 vide Ref *MCA/C/FIN/5/VOL. VI/135/2022*, the committee wrote to the County Executive Committee Member of Finance and Planning on matters related to the revised ADP and supplementary budget estimates during its meeting on November 28, 2022.

The consideration in the Assembly of a proposal to amend the County Integrated Development Plan shall, in addition to complying with the requirements set out under section 112 of the County Governments Act, follow the procedure for considering the County Integrated Development Plan under Standing Order 227.

The Finance and Economic Planning Committee shall consider and review the County Integrated Development Plan and make recommendations to the Assembly, taking into account the views of the Executive Committee Member in charge of Planning. There is the requirement that the committee is to consider representations of the CECM — Finance and Economic planning before making its final report to the County Assembly.

The CECM in his appearance before the joint committee of Budget and Finance on November 28, 2022 made the following submissions;

- That the new programmes introduced in the ADP were aligning the new government manifesto with current policy framework.
- That the County Executive conducted public participation on the Annual Development Plan and new policies on 21st October 2022. The exercise was conducted in line with the provisions of the Constitution and the County Government Act and the Public Finance Management Act.

- That the County Executive had forwarded the health Policy that enabled introduction
 of new programmes in the health sector which had been considered by the Assembly
 accordingly.
- That the County Executive departments that had new programmes in the ADP that require policy framework should forward them to the Assembly in due course.
- The CEC urged the county assembly to consider the new drafts of the CIDP and ADP in areas where policy framework is not provided given the planning documents are strategic in nature.

5.0 RESOURCE REQUIREMENT FOR IMPLEMENTATION OF ADP FY 2022/23

Hon. Speaker, the resource requirement to implement the revised ADP is Kshs. 10.2 billion. In FY 2021/22, the County Government received Kshs 8.36 billion for budget implementation; being Kshs.6.61 billion as the equitable share of the revenue raised nationally, raised Kshs.520.32 million as own-source revenue, Kshs.192.33 million as conditional grants and had a cash balance of Kshs.1.04 billion from FY 2020/21. Whereas the County Assembly approved budget for FY 2022/23 is Kshs.9.62 billion, it is anticipated that the approved supplementary budget implementing this plan will rationalise the priorities against available resource envelope.

6.0 INTEGRATED PLANNING

Hon. Speaker, the National Government is constitutionally mandated to provide guidance on policies, norms and standards for developing various plans as well as capacity building and technical assistance to national government and counties. The planning process at the county level considers integration of the various plans such as the five-year County Integrated Development Plans, tenyear County Sectoral Plans, County, Urban Areas and Cities plan, Spatial Plans, strategic plans etc. The County Integrated Development Plan guidelines are prepared and issued to counties by the State Department.

Flagship/Transformative Projects are projects with high impact in terms of employment creation, increasing county competitiveness, revenue generation. Some of the newly included projects/programmes e.g. automation and mango value chain are flagship. The

committee recommends that the CECM – Economic planning refers to the National Treasury Circular No. 01/2022 during the next phase of planning. The circular has vetting criteria for Kenya Vision 2030 in identification of flagship programmes/ projects in ensuring efficiency and effectiveness in implementation and reporting process.

7.0 RECOMMENDATIONS ON THE REVISED ADP FOR FY 2022/23

After considering the recommendations of the sectoral committees and the legal provisions on amendment of the Annual Development Plan for FY 2022/23, the committee recommends that in accordance with sec. 112 (2), CGA, 2012;

a) The Annual Development Plan FY 2022/23 be amended by introducing the following programmes to the sector priorities;

No.	Sector	New Programme	Amount Kshs.
1	Governorship	Purchase of Monitoring and Evaluation	10,000,000
		Vehicle	Ty s
		Internship Programme	50,000,000
2	Finance, IT and Economic Planning	Automation of County Services	120,000,000
3	Agriculture, Livestock and Fisheries	Agriculture input Support	200,000,000
4	Roads, Transport, Energy and Public Works	Community Based Projects	280,000,000
5	Health	Construction of Level IV Hospital at Mathioya	50,000,000
		Construction of Kenneth Matiba Hospital Level IV	120,000,000
		Construction of Kandara Level IV Hospital	20,000,000
		Maragua Hospital Refurbishment	16,000,000
		Murang'a County UHC for the indedent and vulnerable households	165,000,000

		Maternal Health and Infant Support	
	7	Hospital Services	30,000,000
6	Lands, Housing and Urban	Urban Development	11,000,00
-	Development	Smart Town Programme	200,000,000
	h, h, h	Land Administration	56,700,000
7	Environment and Climate	County Environmental Monitoring and	60,000,000
	Change	Management	11
		*	r K
8 Education and Vocational Training		ECDE Development	75,000,000
		Scholarship Programme	318,000,000
9	Trade, Industry, Tourism and	Murang'a County Development	12,000,000
	Cooperative Authority (MCDA)		v:00
		Murang'a Eco Industrial Special	22,675,000
		Economic Zone (SEZ)	
		Tourism Product	20,000,000
	the contract of		
		* *	

- b) That the approved programmes be the basis of budget implementation during the FY 2022/23.
- c) That the County Departments of Agriculture, Education and Trade should ensure that they implement the new programmes after consideration of the policies by the county assembly.
- d) That the County Department of Finance and Planning should ensure that adequate public participation and consultation is done during the formulation of the third generation County Integrated Development Plan FY 2023-27.
- e) The amount for the new programmes should be aligned to the allocations that will be approved in the supplementary budget estimates for the FY 2022/23

7.0 REPORT ADOPTION

Mr. Speaker, the following members adopted the report;

No.	NAME		SIGNATURE
			1 Americal
1	Hon. John Ngugi Kibaiya		William)
2	Hon. Alex W. Wanyoike		
3	Hon. Francis K. Kamau	_	1 Lance
4	Hon. Stephen Muigai		
5	Hon. Morris Thuku		4
	,		
6	Hon. Loise Mary Muthoni	-	Mathen
			MMane
7	Hon. Margret W. Gichia	-	Mane
8	Hon. Peter Murigi Ngugi		
9	Hon. Jane Mukami		Amel.
	Hom. Jane Wakami		
10	Hon. Thomas Muteti		AMD-1.
11	Hon. Gladys Wambui Waikau		800ma>
12			W
12	Hon. Charles Machigo Karina		W .
13	Hon. Hilary Muigai Muchoki		1
14	Hon. Pauline Njeri Muchiri		A- ·
15	Hon. John Kamau Munyua		JKAH-

ſ	I			
			1	
		*		
16	Han Esthan Nyawina Kamain da			
10	Hon. Esther Nyawira Kamindo			